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SENATOR FLOREZ:  ...2006 heat wave.  And what we’re going to do is we’re going to start with Mr. Horton, the director of Public Health, and then we’re going to pause and allow, we're going to lift the calls again.  So, let’s go ahead and begin the hearing.  
First and foremost I want to say good morning and thank you for being here to the administration.  Obviously the summer temperatures in the three digit range gives us an excellent opportunity to revisit the devastating heat wave last summer that shattered records throughout the state for two weeks and took a massive human toll, withered crops, damage to dairy and cattle and poultry industries, fueled fires and strained our electric grid.

This hearing conducted last August, this committee had a hearing that was quite lengthy.  And the list of witnesses was quite extensive.  Transcripts of the hearing are available at the committee’s website, and I do promise today’s hearing will not be as time consuming to the administration.  Our witnesses, of course, are first rate.  I want to thank them in advance for being here this morning.  And obviously the magnitude of last summer’s heat disaster needs to be brought to the forefront.  A full year’s passed.  Evaluations have been made.  And we need to discuss the lessons learned.  

I believe such information will provide invaluable, and give us public officials and excellent response in terms of the next heat wave.  And I might add that last weeks mini heat wave provided us with an opportunity and today’s witnesses are prepared to talk about the evaluation of the state and local response to last week’s 100 degree heat weather.  I did get my page in terms of the emergency system, and so I knew that we had a heat wave plan.  That it was about to be implemented or it was ready to be moved so that made me feel much better.  And so I do want to thank the Governor’s office for being here.

I do want, if I could, give some parameters for today’s hearing.  As I said, we will try to be brief.  We want to hear about the recommendations submitted by the Governor’s Heat Response Task Force.  We want to talk about preventative measures and plans that have been instituted by the Office of Emergency Services.  We also want to, in essence, look at some aspects of the review of the July 6 heat wave related “Fatalities in California” report that should, gives excellent evidence that last summer’s deaths were indeed extra and resulted in heat related conditions, resulted from heat related conditions.

And the last point is the heat illness prevention regulations.  Obviously, in reference to the outdoor issues of employment that were developed and approved in July of August by the Department of Industrial Relations that resulted in farm worker deaths that occurred in the summer of 2005, we’re here just to, in essence, check in to make sure what the administration’s put forward is working.  That there can be, if there’s any room for improvement, obviously we’re interested in that.  And at this point, I do want to thank everyone for being here.  I do know everyone has a busy day, so if you could stick around, that would be great.  And let’s go ahead and begin with Dr. Mark Horton, director of Public Health, and then Mr. Henry Renteria, director of Office of Emergency Services.  Mr. Horton and Mr. Renteria, thank you for being here.  

DR. MARK HORTON:  Right.  Thanks.  Once again, it’s Dr. Mark Horton.  I’m the state public health officer and ten days into my new position as director of the new Department of Public Health.  As you’ll remember, that was created as a result of SB 162 by the Legislature and the Governor to ensure that we had a department in State government that was uniquely missioned to address major public health threats and certainly heat is one of those types of threats.  So I’m more than happy to be here to discuss the results of what we found from last year’s and tell  you what steps we’ve put in place.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, great.  Let me start with a couple of questions.  The report indicated about 90 percent of heat related victims lived in social economic depressed area of the state.

DR. HORTON:  Correct.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Has the Department instituted any new policies in terms of somehow to better disseminate information to this group of people given these communities?

DR. HORTON:  In response to that information, I think we have increased our communications with local jurisdictions to ensure that they have within their plans specific steps to identify vulnerable populations including those that would live in impoverished parts of their counties.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I guess what I’m getting at is that the report seems to talk about the risk of heat stroke tend to be higher in Hispanic, black, predominately poor areas as I’ve mentioned, but have you done any further research, analyze any data in terms of factors that may cause this particular higher rate of incidents when we have heat waves?
DR. HORTON:  The report indicated that there is a need for further research to address those issues.  Clearly the data stands for itself and indicates that we have groups that are relatively greater impacted by heat.  Mr. Chairman, we certainly need further research to further tease out what are the factors that make those individuals at greater risk.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, when you say further research, when does that occur?

DR. HORTON:  We have not—we don’t have immediate plans to undertake that research at the present time.  
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, so when you say we need further research, but we don’t have plans at this time, I'm missing the connection there.  We need it, but we don’t have plans to do it.  So how do we, what can you tell us in terms of getting those plans completed?

DR. HORTON:  I’ll have to consult with staff to see what resources and plans they have availability to make further research on the data that we have available to us.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Could you let us know?  That was real important for us.

DR. HORTON:  Sure.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  The report also revealed certain types of environmental risk factors, if you will.  Somehow the top floor apartments, lack of air conditioning, work places producing heat, dry cleaners, bakeries, outdoor farming operations—did you go through that in the report, or those types of areas that I just mentioned?

DR. HORTON:  I was certainly aware of the fact that there are certain parts of the state that are more at risk than other parts of the state.  We know about, for example, that I believe 80 percent of the deaths occurred in seven counties that were particularly affected by that.  But, we, in my summary, we didn’t get down into the detail of specific environments, the second floor, or first floor apartments, for example.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, I guess the question is then, we're looking at this from a very macro point of view.  And who does the micro?  Who looks at apartments, who looks at places of work that produce heat?  Yesterday we heard a bill that talked about glass blowing, a whole host of other indoor types of factors.  Ms. Richardson has a bill on that in fact, talking about those.  I mean, who’s looking that those types of higher, if you will, risks, hotter than normal even when it’s really hot?  Who’s responsible for looking at that?  Counties?  State?

DR. HORTON:  Certainly local jurisdictions I think have a major responsibility to do further, to gathering of information and try to detect where deaths or illnesses occurred in their communities.  We certainly would like to support those types of activities and try to get further information on what are the risk factors that involve illness and death.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, so you’re the public health person on the job for how many days?

DR. HORTON:  Ten days.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Ten days, so we won’t hold you to put information out, but in terms of trying to get more advice on preventative measures out there as the public health officer, how do you, how are you intertwined with the Office of Emergency Services and others?  And I’ll ask Mr. Renteria the same question, but from your perspective, how are you filtering preventive types of advice to more vulnerable populations, particularly in the last heat wave we had those who were living alone where we tended to find most of the deaths.  We had to go door to door, to see and how do we get that information out earlier to most vulnerable populations?

DR. HORTON:  Well, I think that we work very closely with the Office of Emergency Services to fashion the messages that need to go out to the public to make them aware of the risk factors including the degree of heat in particularly environments air conditioned versus non-air conditioned.  I think also we are a major conduit of information to the Office of Emergency Services in that during an event like this we are in regular contact with local jurisdictions and we can find out from them what particular challenges they are having and feed that information into the Office of Emergency Services that can look for more systems-wide or statewide resolutions or supports that we need to provide counties to address those issues.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Any specific measures that the administration has developed to protect these at risk groups?  

DR. HORTON:  I think that the specific measures I think that we are talking about are the things that have developed through our experience over the past heat wave certainly aggressive, early public awareness is probably the most important single thing we need to send a very strong message that, hey, there is real danger here.  This is not just a casual warning.  We need to remind people about the personal behavior choices they can make that can improve their likelihood of avoiding heat related illness.  

And then thirdly, we can send very strong messages about the vulnerable populations that they need to be in contact with.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Who’s the best messenger for that, that emergency type?  Be very careful.  It’s a very dangerous time in California.  Who’s responsible for—last year we had a debate about that.  It was the counties who were supposed to say that we’re having an emergency and the Governor was saying that we know it’s important, but unless we hear from our counties, I mean, this time, I got a text from the state saying from a top down perspective it was important.  I mean, is that the single difference in this year versus last year in terms of taking this seriously?  And then how does public health weigh into that?  I mean, I got a message from Mr. Renteria’s operation.  I mean, how do you, in essence, tell folks out there as the top public health official that this is a public health issue versus just a let’s get through it?

DR. HORTON:  Well, the first part of your question, I mean, we certainly like to think of our public health system as a statewide system that has different levels.  In other words, I think in terms of how you get the word out, I think it’s got to be a coordinated effort on both the state level and the local level, so we take responsibility in putting messages out at the state level, but we ensure, encourage local jurisdictions to add part of their plan to supplement that.  Every health officer in every county particularly affected ought to be on the phone with their, with the media, on the radio, on the television putting their own press releases out, so it’s gotta be a coordinated effort with both the local and state participation.  
And certainly, I think that for example, the most recent press release that we put out showed good relationships between public health and the Office of Emergency Services.  Henry’s got certain things that he thinks he needs to say as Office of Emergency Services.  I, as the chief doc in the state have certain health messages that need to be combined.  So I think it needs to be a coordinated effort on the part of public health and the Office of Emergency Services.  And I think we do that.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  How do the non-profits weigh in here in an emergency from a public health perspective.  How are they notified?  How does a rural clinic sitting out in Arvin, California, with the high incidence of folks reporting heat related types of incidents?  I mean, how do those . . .

DR. HORTON:  There’s a couple different mechanisms that we get the messages out to certain types of health facilities.  Certainly the Department of Public Health having the responsibility for the licensure and certification of hospitals and nursing homes, immediately contact the network of nursing homes reminding them of the steps that they need to take to protect their residents and ensuring that they will report to us any unusual events.  We have emergency teams ready through our district offices to respond, to help individual health facilities.  The many of the other entities like community-based organizations and clinics, once again, we rely upon local jurisdictions to include contact with those entities through their plan and as we encourage them to activate their plan, we want to make sure that they are contacting such other important elements in their communities.  So we work very, very closely, once again, with local jurisdictions to ensure the word gets out to those types of clinics and facilities as well as populations at risk like vulnerable citizens.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Do you have the capacity as the public health office to monitor the number of calls from individuals that report heat assistance help or illnesses?  I mean, how does that information filter up to you?

DR. HORTON:  Once again, we are in regular contact with local jurisdictions and that information is the type of thing that we would ask them to report on regularly to see how many calls they‘re getting.  So we do have a way of collating that information from the local jurisdictions that we're regularly in contact with during the emergency.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Alright.  Any specific plans in terms of media in terms of how to target from a public health perspective?  I got a page that told me that something was pretty serious and I don’t know the rest of the folks out there, how do they get notified?  Watch the news?

DR. HORTON:  Well, first of all we have, we usually communicate through press releases, through other ____ actions with the media and then of course, with our partners, the local health jurisdictions, we have an alerting mechanism called CAHEN, the California Health Alert Network, which we use to ensure that instantaneously the whole network of local health departments are notified of an impending emergency including heat disasters.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Thank you, Dr. Horton.

DR. HORTON:  You’re very welcome.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Mr. Renteria, a couple of questions.  Maybe you can just briefly describe the state’s plan for excessive heat emergencies.

MR. HENRY RENTERIA:  Absolutely 
SENATOR FLOREZ:  And particularly on the four phases of activation.  That would be, that would be wonderful.

MR. RENTERIA:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman, members of the committee.  I appreciate the opportunity to be here and giving you an update on what we’ve done from last year and how we’re preparing for this year.  I think first and foremost, and I do want to support everything that Dr. Horton has said, that it is a partnership that we have here in working together to not only identify where the needs are, but also identify what resources the state can provide to the locals with respect to any needs that they may have with their own particular jurisdictional areas.  

As we know, these heat emergencies are, came to the forefront last year because of the sustained amount of days that we had of heat and temperatures in the 100 degree plus.  Obviously hundred degree weather is not new to California.  And many jurisdictions and many locals are very well prepared to deal with it.  It’s when you have the sustained amount of heat and the vulnerable populations with preexisting conditions which we learned from last year.  So as a result of last year and the incident that we had, we, the Governor did convene a task force which the public health office, our office and 23, 21 other agencies were involved and developed our heat plan and prepared for this season. 
The heat contingency plan calls for four phases in response to state and local authorities to be able to respond to any heat emergency.  Phase One is seasonal preparedness, which in this case began on March 20, at the end of May, rather, when we knew that the summer was going to begin and we were going to have sustained heat.  So at that point, our seasonal readiness campaign started by producing public information messages to the media working with our counterparts in other state agencies to identify what stages of readiness each department had to undertake.  

Phase Two began on June 29th when we received the first official forecast from the National Weather Service that we were going to have a potential heat wave and temperatures of 100 degrees for three days or less.  Phase Three of the plan calls for a heat alert, and that began in this case, July 3rd, when we knew that we were going to have at least three days or more of 100 degree plus temperature.

Phase Four means an actual heat emergency.  And we have not entered that phase yet.  And that’s when the local jurisdiction declares a local emergency and requests of the state also proclaim an emergency to support them.  Each of these phases has a checklist for state agencies and recommended guidelines for locals.  It identifies vulnerable populations, and establishes a protocol for contacting those populations.  
As Dr. Horton mentioned, there is a system in place where we are communication (?) through his office with local health officials.  We also have the ability to issue alert messages through our California warning center, which Senator Florez is one of the members who receives those messages.  In working with non-profits, if I can add, too, is that with our public private partnership and the standardized emergency management system that we have in place that now has disabled representatives and vulnerable populations identified to be part of that system, we will now be incorporating a lot of the issues that those vulnerable populations and disabled community has in order to prepare them for other types of disasters such as heat emergencies.
The plan also includes a listing of transportation resources that can be used during a heat emergency to transport people to cooling centers.  Provides information about animal health, public information activities to be taken during an excessive heat event.  It goes to the operational direction, the state agencies at each phase.  We have a website established and a toll free number that people may call at the state.  It includes information of what state cooling centers have been opened and which ones are operational.  In conjunction with whatever local cooling centers have been established.

The relationship also incorporates another major partner and that’s the National Weather Service.  They are the ones that really provide us with the key information we need to activate this plan.  And we are in constant communication with them in addition to daily conference calls with all of the affected and impacted parties so that we can prepare for any event that the public may need.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Mr. Renteria, let me pause just before you turn the next page in your binder, so I can ask a couple of specific questions.  First and foremost, what would you say the major outlet for information is to the general public?

MR. RENTERIA:  Right now, the major outlet is the media.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And the media would be who?

MR. RENTERIA:  Radio, television.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And what if you don’t have a radio or television?  How do folks. . .

MR. RENTERIA:  Then the next step would be the non-profit agencies that service those populations and our ability to communicate with those agencies to get the word out.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  And the opportunity to tell folks that a cooling center is opened and that type of no radio or TV.  A lot of our farm camps, as you probably know, lack some of those amenities.  And so how would one in a farm labor camp know that a cooling center is open in their local town in Wasco, California, for example?
MR. RENTERIA:  Part of the answer to that would be if we knew where these centers were or these labor camps were and they were part of some sort of system where we could distribute information, we could either do it through whatever means they have available, telephone calls or paging systems, for example.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, now when you say if we knew means that we don’t know.  So do we know or . . .

MR. RENTERIA:  Well, again, the part of the process of this plan is to work with the locals to identify the vulnerable populations.  If that is identified as part of a vulnerable population, then we’ll put them into our database.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And you say if that is, so we’re in our second year now, so when will we find out if it was done versus—
MR. RENTERIA:  As we, in fact, right now as when we activated now through this phase of the heat plan, just because a heat emergency is over or the 100 degree weather is over doesn’t mean the plan closes up and put on the shelf.  We’re now in communication with our local representatives to see, okay, tell us how this worked.  Did we reach the population?  Are there other populations we need to reach and how can you help us identify them?  So we’ll be continuing on that process.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, I guess the question I have is is this really a plan without that in place?  Is this plan that we are covering today, is it still lacking the local specific types of actions that one should take?

MR. RENTERIA:  I wouldn’t say it was lacking.  I think it’s a continuation.  It’s a process that continues.  A plan never is finished.  I always like to describe plans, or they’re always in process or in progress.  Every emergency teaches us new things.  Every emergency tells us things that we need to look for for the next time.  And every one is unique.  So in this particular case, identifying these other vulnerable populations is part of an ongoing process and we’ll continue to do that.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Is it fair to say that farm labor camps at this point are included in your plan?

MR. RENTERIA:   They are a part of the vulnerable population, yes.  And I will make sure that we find out where these places are.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And what about towns that, in essence—well, first of all, the cooling centers—where is the most likely, what is the most likely facility to have a cooling center?  Or what is that, a state building or is that a fair ground, or?

MR. RENTERIA:  Interesting.  There is no defined description or definition of what a cooling center is.  And we have established some minimum criteria that should be incorporated in each cooling center and the plan does address that in conjunction with our public health partners.  But, at this point, we have identified state-owned facilities that meet this basic criteria.  And the ones that we have opened up so far are the state fair grounds, because they do have the minimum criteria that’s needed to open these up.  
However, local jurisdictions have also identified their own particular cooling centers and in many cases, it’s not necessarily a city owned building or a county owned building.  It could be like a shopping mall or a public gathering place that has air conditioning and the message will be for people to get out of the heat and go to these places.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, given that the larger urban areas probably have more state buildings and more facilities than some of the hottest areas aren’t in Los Angeles, obviously.  They’re in the Central Valley.  How does one demand that local jurisdictions and counties come up with a standardized cooling center that everyone knows is there and when we hit an emergency base four, if you will, or even base three, that it will be open?  I mean, do we—how do we, in essence, make sure that there are cooling centers?  I mean, the fair grounds in Kern County, for example, is in Bakersfield.  So if you live in Delano, that’s about a 35 mile drive.  If you’re driving in a car, if you have to go to a cooling center, it probably means that you have a car that’s less likely to have air conditioning.  If your driving 30 minutes in a car in 113 degree weather to a cooling center that’s open and you probably don’t have enough, given gas prices, to get there.  I mean, how do we make the city of Delano open a cooling center or know from your vantage point that there will be a standardized cooling center in the city for example, so one doesn’t have to take the drive to the fair grounds?

MR. RENTERIA:  This is part of the planning process and part of the preparedness process as far as the seasonal preparedness.  The conversations and discussions we had with our local counterparts will be to let them know that this is now something that has now been incorporated as part of our overall disaster preparedness for any type of emergency.  Heat emergencies are something now that are real, and we need to be dealing with them on a regular basis.  Consequently, heat emergencies are also unpredictable, so it’s not like you can establish permanent cooling centers in places and then not have anybody come to them, because it never got over 100 degrees.

So, working with our locals in preparation for a possible heat wave, we would not only let them know that we have identified state facilities, but as you pointed out, some of these state facilities may not be the most adequate.  So we would encourage them to help us identify local run centers.  And that’s part of the process that we would use is working with the locals up front early on.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And so when will that take place?

MR. RENTERIA:  That takes place—

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Another evolution of . . .

MR. RENTERIA:  It’s taking place already in the preparedness phase in the seasonal preparedness.  By working with the locals now, we are helping them to identify some criteria that the cooling centers should have.  And here I’ll put on my old local hat from my days as emergency manager in a city.  I know that city owned facilities like parks and rec facilities, schools that are already identified as shelters in an emergency could also be used as cooling centers if we needed them.  So working with the locals to help them identify those types of places would be beneficial to this whole plan.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Do you happen to know, given last year’s heat wave and particularly in the Central Valley, where most of the deaths occurred?

MR. RENTERIA:  Yes, we do.  I think it was in the plan.

DR. HORTON:  We have the counties listed.  Would you like to know a list of the counties?

SENATOR FLOREZ:  No, not the counties.  Cities.  I kind of just—I know the answer, I just want to know if you know the answer.  You’re the public—

MR. RENTERIA:  I did see a chart that had by the coroner’s reports.  Gave us where that was.  I don’t have it directly in front of me, but I know I just saw it.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Search for it for a moment.  It will allow Mr. Yee to lift the calls and allow to go on with his day.  San Francisco’s a little cooler than Central Valley, Mr. Yee, you know.

UNIDENTIFIED:  (INAUDIBLE) 
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Let’s go ahead and lift the call and you folks give me a minute and let’s allow Mr. Yee (LAPSE IN TAPE) 
Okay, let’s get back if we could, the question at hand.

MR. RENTERIA:  The question was where the most deaths occurred.  We have them broken down by county.  So if you needed us to break them down by city—

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Give me the top county.

MR. RENTERIA:  Well, according to the report, Imperial County had the highest rate followed by Stanislaus.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And Brawley, California?  Where’s the cooling center there?  And we have a plan, so, I mean, where is the cooling center?  

MR. RENTERIA:  Which county.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  San Bernardino.

MR. RENTERIA:  That would be San Bernardino County Fair, Victorville.  That was the San Bernardino County Fairground.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  How does one get from Brawley to the cooling center?  I mean, beyond—Brawley is a city.  I mean how do we get people in Brawley to, or the city hall or given notice that’s more specific so that people know if it gets really hot.  We’re talking about those unusual circumstances, Mr. Renteria said, where we have five consecutive days of triple digit heat which kicks us into a different phase, obviously all together from a public health point of view.  I mean, I guess the point is I would expect that the state would probably have through a running list of what goes on when we hit that phase.  What centers are open specifically, or is that a county function?  Or is it a city function?  I’m just trying to understand who ultimately—you can call it, but I mean, ultimately, who implements?

MR. RENTERIA:  What you just described is of all parties were involved, city, county, even special districts were involved also, with the state.  Our conference calls every morning would be with those jurisdictions to identify what are the specific issues.  I have 50 people located in five different locations and they need transportation.  Okay?  State, we don’t have a way to move these people.  Can you help us?  Then it would be up to us working with our public health officers and with our non-profits to identify transportation means, whether it means getting buses to pick these people up.  Having them all go to one location and pick them up there.  But, those are the types of things we would decide by each particular jurisdiction.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  And given that you’re talking about a Phase Three or Four type of an action, the plan says that, quote, directly contact your monitoring those at risk.  And I guess the question would have then for either of you is who’s, how do we know who’s at risk and at that point in time during that conference call?
MR. RENTERIA:  Through our local contacts, through the non-profit agencies, the service providers, public health office.  If we can identify those people, they identify them to us, we’ll be in contact.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, so it’s the local driven process in terms of those at risk.  Okay.  Okay.  And in terms of the transporting, as you mentioned earlier, again, the identification of those who need transport is a state function, or a local or county?

MR. RENTERIA:  Local function.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And any idea if the state is asked to provide transportation how that happens?  

MR. RENTERIA:  How the actual transportation is provided?

SENATOR FLOREZ:  That is a state function, so if you were asked to—

MR. RENTERIA:  If we were asked to do it, yes.  Then we would look at what state resources we have within the jurisdiction that we can either mission task, what state agency we could mission task that have the appropriate transportation vehicles.  Or if not—

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Do we know that now?  In the event that two days from now we have five straight days of triple digit heat and you get a call from Tulare County and they say, look, we’re just outmanned here.  We need to know, I mean, do you know that now, versus waiting to identify?

MR. RENTERIA:  I know that if I have a CDF or CalFire fire station near the area and they have a van, yes, I know that.  But, what I don’t know is if locals do not have their own specific transportation they will rely on us.  Maybe on that particular day they don’t have buses available, or they don’t have vans available.  But that’s why we would work with them on a daily basis.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Let’s assume it’s summer and school’s out and we have air conditioned school buses if we’re fortunate to do that, and you have a farm labor camp that has 310 people in it with no air conditioning and there’s been a call for assistance for transport.  Most of those folks maybe use ride share vans to get to work.  They go with contractors.  How do we deal with that?

MR. RENTERIA:  Again, if there are local resources that are identified and we will work with the locals to help either contract those services or mission task them or commandeer them.  I mean we have the ability to commandeer private resources—

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I understand.  But, are school districts, then, included given those seem to be the most readily available, large types of transportation pieces that we have, or are they not included?  You mentioned special districts, you mentioned counties and cities, but I didn’t hear you mention school districts.

MR. RENTERIA:  Well, special districts are included in school districts.  And also, what I meant by special districts is transportation districts, too.  If there’s a bus company, we would commandeer those buses to move people.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  How about the school buses?

MR. RENTERIA:  School buses--they’re probably under contract with a special district, and yes, we could do that.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Is that included or have you looked—

MR. RENTERIA:  That is part of the process.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Any thought, blackouts, obviously, things get so hot the grid goes out.  You have cooling centers that are supposed to be cool and there’s a blackout.  

MR. RENTERIA:  I know that’s an ongoing concern, because not all of the centers have back up generators.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  But, our prisons have back up generators, right?

MR. RENTERIA:  Which ones?

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Our prisons.  We have back up generators, and so they’re cool.  And so for the rest of the world, how do we make sure that our cooling centers are really cool and have the same types of protections as maybe our prisons do?

MR. RENTERIA:  Well, again the first rule of thought is to identify facilities that have that back up generation already.  If not, identify a way to get portable generators to those facilities in order to cool them.  
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, and the portable generators are things you could bring into a fair ground very quickly to cool, cool off, let’s say, a portion of a room.  And has that been utilized by the administration at all?

MR. RENTERIA:  That’s part of the planning process that we identified that last year.  And what if a facility lost power?  Our options were to move the victims somewhere else or bring in portable generators with portable air conditioners to deal with that.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And cooling centers seem to be a major component of the plan.  Who decides when they’re, in essence, to be closed?  Kern County closed theirs Tuesday.  What’s the trigger for the closing of a cooling center?

MR. RENTERIA:  The state owned cooling centers?  The locals will decide what they need to do, but they’ll be in communication with us to make sure that we coordinate our plans.  But, a lot of it depends on the forecast, also.  Once we know from the National Weather Service that the temperatures will get back to a normal status, we will make the decision to close them.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, so in terms of the hospitals and care facilities that I mentioned earlier, by Dr. Horton, for example, back up generators for those are private sector function or for county run hospitals it would be on the public side so the counties themselves should know how to keep those types of facilitates open?

MR. RENTERIA:  Right.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Is there any anticipation that the power will be out for 24 hours in any of your scenarios under the plan?

MR. RENTERIA:  There’s always the possibility that we could have blackouts, and that’s where the other important pieces of this puzzle is the power providers, Cal ISO, and those who are a part of the process, too, and part of the conference calls every day to make sure that the power grid is not being impacted.  And even if the power grid is impacted, there are ways to, if there is a blackout in one part of a city they can transfer power to another part.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yeah, I guess the, you hit my next question which is if indeed we hit a, you know, five day in a row, triple digit scenario and the strain on the grid is so much that we have to have rolling blackouts, is there a way to exempt the Central Valley, for example, for which given its load, I mean, obviously I have rolling black outs, but a rolling black out in San Francisco or the Bay Area or some parts of our coast probably has less of an impact than cooling centers going down in an area that may be 110 degrees in the evening.  I mean, are rolling blackouts scenarios taken into account, vulnerable areas that cannot not afford to be in the rolling blackout scenario?

MR. RENTERIA:  We did discuss that last year, because the issue did come up in that certain facilities are put on essential service facility and they will be restored power first.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Right.

MR. RENTERIA:  Our facilities are not.  So part of that will have to be discussions with the power providers to see how, if those facilities are designated as essential for the public safety of the people who are in them, then maybe there’s a way to get an exemption for those facilities.  We’ll look into that.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, now again , if there is a way and you’re going to look into it, given that this is an emergency plan, then on the state side we do have and the Governor has enormous power, I assume to negotiate with some of our power providers, I mean, in the plan it seems to me that we would have a scenario where we absolutely exempted a scheduled rolling blackout that someone calls in another part of the state as just part of the process that may run from 1 p.m. to 5 p.m.  And it just happens to run through the Central Valley at a time when that would be the worst possible scenario.  And they may not even be aware of it or we include something in our heat plan that says that absolutely cannot happen, will not happen, and because we have a heat plans that says these exempted areas on the third or fourth day of a five day heat wave can’t go out.  

MR. RENTERIA:  They way you just described it I think that is something—let me look into that, because the issues comes down to what are the policies and procedures that the power companies have for identifying which facilities will be restored.  Because I’m familiar with what you just pointed out during the blackouts that we had, the rolling blackouts we had a few years ago, in that we at the city level did meet with PG&E and say, these are the areas that absolutely we need to have power.  So I know there is a way to this.  I’ll follow up on that.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, I mean, I think given the plan and it being somewhat resilient, it seems as though if we really are planning for a stage four and even if the counties have asked for help, part of that would include working with our ISOs and others that during that we have an absolute exemption for areas that cannot afford, or if there’s a rolling blackout it could occur at some point in the evening where its’ less, you know, it’s not 1-5, it’s, you know, 9 p.m. to midnight, or something of that sort.  Maybe you could look into that, as well. 

Let’s, if I could, talk about the implementation of the heat plan over the Fourth of July weekend.  As I mentioned, I did get my alert.  Was that a Phase Three or was that a Phase Four activation?  I mean, how are I to—

MR. RENTERIA:  This past week we went into a Phase Three.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Phase Three.

MR. RENTERIA:  Yes.  We opened up 17 state cooling centers in 13 counties.  We had approximately 75 individuals that took advantage of the cooling centers over a five-day period.  The locals established their cooling centers, too, but we don’t have all of the numbers yet on how many they set up.  But, again, like I said earlier, a lot of them were public gathering places like malls or movie theaters.  They also suggested people do that. 

We established the 1-800 number in which we received approximately 86 calls--80 of them in English, nine in Spanish.  And no calls for the hearing impaired.  The warming trend was forecast by the National Weather Service started on June 29th and that’s when we started Phase Two of the plan.  Then we went to Phase Three on July 2nd.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  That was the—was that the first real test of the plan?  

MR. RENTERIA:  Of this plan, yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And, yet, we didn’t experience extreme heat.  Did you conclude that it was adequate given where we were at?

MR. RENTERIA:  I think we made a lot of progress over the last year, and we’re still improving.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I would agree with that.  Many of the local governments also activated their cooling centers.  Was that pursuant to their own plans or was that pursuant to this plan?
MR. RENTERIA:  I would say in some cases it was more our leading forward, so to speak, in preparing for this heat wave based on our experience last year.  Although, some local jurisdictions, because of the high number of deaths they had in their particular jurisdictions were very active, also.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Do you have a chance to review those local plans and at some point are they going to be incorporated in a larger plan?  Or is just a dual track type of a system?

MR. RENTERIA:  We are reviewing those local plans as I mentioned to you.  I think last year we are now reviewing every single operational area plan, every county plan.  
SENATOR FLOREZ:  And how many have you reviewed?

MR. RENTERIA:  I think we’re almost through with all of them.  I’ll give you an update of that report coming up pretty soon.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Okay.  Have you reviewed the critical areas given the heat, I mean, for example, the counties that have a tendency to be hotter than other counties: Central Valley, some parts of the San Diego, San Bernardino area?

MR. RENTERIA:  Absolutely.  But, again, those areas were more used to the heat.  It really comes back to how many, how much of a vulnerable population is existing in those areas.  So . . .

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Used to the heat, meaning that they think they can weather it and not seems to be a public health problem?  Right, Mr. Horton, that somehow hot areas, so therefore--

DR. HORTON:  It’s one of the things we learned.  We thought, well, you know, those counties that are used to it won’t have as much of a problem, and that is not what we found.  We found that in fact the problems were exactly in those counties.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  I’m glad.  
DR. HORTON:  So, absolutely, we learned that—

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Everyone thinks you’re going to weather the heat, but in the third or fourth day, you know, that’s when you have a false sense of, you know, this is where I live, I know how to deal with the heat, and somehow it catches up with you.  

DR. HORTON:  Very strong message we got from the analysis data from last year.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yeah, okay.  The OES model and the local government model, again, then is a living body that encompasses ongoing discussions which is activated at some point in Phase Three or Four with a conference call that heightens the coordination aspect of this.  Is that—

MR. RENTERIA:  Correct.  And actually, the conference call started at phase two.  We don’t wait until phase three.  Phase one is it is seasonal ready, and phase two we start the communication.
DR. HORTON:  And once again, the California Health Alert Network, we have already alerted counties to the coming heat wave.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And you mentioned the toll free help line and you mentioned that how many calls, 80?  

MR. RENTERIA:  Eighty-six.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Eighty-six.  And in the past you partnered with the Department of Consumer Affairs.  And this, it’s the Franchise Tax Board and what’s the—

MR. RENTERIA:  Franchise Tax Board.  They—

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Why was the decision . . .

MR. RENTERIA:  They already have the infrastructure in place to handle numerous calls, 800 numbers, staff to answer the call.  So we looked at as opposed to creating something new, we looked at an existing state agency that already had the ability to do that.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Okay.  Okay.  I think there’s some information that we’d still like to chat with you one.  And there seems to be some improvements, but I can say that we are happy we have a plan, because as I think we said last year heat waves are as much emergency as tsunamis and floods and fires in California and we appreciate the fact that the Governor and there is a plan that is resilient and will continue to change and move forward.  So I do appreciate your testimony.  

Okay.  We can have Dr. Roger Trent and Ms. Elizabeth Morse.  I know we have a doctor and a meteorologist, but if we can both come up, we can do these two by two, if possible.  And then we’ll end with Mark Woo-Sam and Rick Martinez who I see in the audience.
Dr. Trent, did you hear anything from Dr. Horton that you would want to add?  Anything more?

DR. ROGER TRENT:  (INAUDIBLE) I don’t think there’s any additional ___
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Did you brief him fully?  He did okay?  Okay, thank you Dr. Horton and Dr. Trent.  Appreciate that very much.  
Okay.  If we could, then, Ms. Morse, thank you for joining us.  Just a couple of questions.  I think Mr. Renteria said that National Weather Service plays a significant role in terms of giving timely and accurate information.  In fact, he mentioned in phase one is obviously we’re heading into the season which I think we all know it’s getting hot.  But, Phase Two and Three are more significant, and maybe you can tell us the types of tools that you use to do weekly, monthly, and seasonal outlooks for the committee.

MS. ELIZABETH MORSE:  At local offices and that’s where we’re plugged into the Office of Emergency Services and cities and states, we mainly deal with the next seven days.  So we would be the people who would actually be putting out heat advisories, heat warnings, and we’re the ones who are on calls when you go into Phase Two.

When you look at the longer ranges, that goes almost from meteorology into climatology which is a sister science, but uses some different tools.  So there you’re looking at how does this differ from anything we’ve seen before and see surface temperatures and a lot of other tools like that.  Most heat episodes, the signatures for them are found in the near term.  And so it really is in the next seven days that you’re dealing with things.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Is it possible to—let me first ask the threshold question.  The capabilities that we have today, are they far superior than they were let’s say, 10, 20 years ago?  Or are we just about where. . .

MS. MORSE:  There have been major improvements in our ability to forecast for excessive heat.  And we learned an enormous amount with last year’s event.  The meteorology is fairly simple.  What becomes complicated in a heat event and what all of us are struggling with is how do you take a simple forecast of it’s going to be hot, it’s going to be humid, there really won’t be clouds, and translate that into how does that affect people?  And I think that’s where the real learning occurred last year as we started sharing information and trying to figure out what impacts did we see.  
I think it’s going to be very interesting as we look at the date of when this last event, the mini event as you called it.  How did that differ? Because it will give us, it will probably give us a good bound on the two extremes that we’ll be dealing with in heat emergencies.  The mini event where it’s more a matter of trying to make sure that people in Quincy don’t sit out in the sun for music festivals and get heat stroke, versus something like last year where you really have major concerns about excessive mortalities for humans and animals.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, and given those, is it fair to say that really the distinction is that which is uncomfortable and that which is absolutely dangerous?  How do you help us with that decision from an OES perspective?  I mean, ultimately, they’re going to be relying on you to give us some sort of a judgment.  And is humidity factored in?
MS. MORSE:  Humidity definitely is factored in. we use something called apparent temperature or the heat index which actually takes temperature and then says will the humidity make that feel worse or make it feel better?  And there in California we’re fairly lucky except along the coast, we have lower humidity.  It actually tends to make temperatures feel less horrible.  So 114 in Redding might only feel like 105.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  From a health perspective, what is humidity adding to what we know today in these what I would call the new heat wave environment that we now have under these new, this new plan?

MS. MORSE:  Humidity, and this is in layman’s terms and I’d leave it to the medical doctors to give it in other terms, but it affects how you sweat.  And that really helps it.  How does your body regulate heat?  And so the higher humidity, the harder it is for your body to throw off heat.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  How are your warnings for example, coordinated with the Governor’s Office of Emergency Services?  Do they call you?  You call them?  Is there some sort of joint conference call?  I mean, ultimately, how are we to know?

MS. MORSE:  All of our warnings go immediately to the Office of Emergency Services warning center.  And so they’ll pull all the county emergency managers to let them know that there’s something out.  And this year they were even doing it as we first started with just the initial statement saying we're looking at high heat coming.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Would you say, how long have you been?

MS. MORSE:  I’ve been in the Sacramento office for 12 years. 

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Twelve years.  Is there from your perspective only, it’s been a marked difference of awareness from last year to this year?

MS. MORSE:  Very much so.  I don’t think that five years ago we would have had any of this activity for the event we just had.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I see.  And from your vantage point, what are the more healthful, helpful parts of the plan given the change from the big heat wave we had last year to this year?

MS. MORSE:  I think one of the big advantages of having the plan is we have all of the players talking together on a routine basis.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And in terms of the general public, what does, what do they take when they hear the word heat advisory?  I mean, is that the correct term?

MS. MORSE:  We have both heat advisories and heat warnings.  A warning is this is even worse than a heat advisory.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.

MS. MORSE:  And we hope that we have trained people what we have always learned is they don’t understand the term, so we do try do try to do some sort of educational effort, and we have been trying to partner with Office of Emergency Services, the Red Cross, and other groups who are out there giving those messages.  But, there’s always reeducation that’s needed.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Let’s, let me ask you about the edges of technology, if I could.  You make, you do make forecasts, correct?  And we rely on those in terms of trying to figure out how long a heat wave particularly will last.  And we do know the vulnerable areas.  I think you heard me ask Dr. Horton, you know, the vulnerable areas always seem to be those particularly in the middle of California or some San Bernardino and San Diego.  Hottest portions of California, combined with some of the poorer areas.  Can we get information from a forecast pint of view down to the census track?

MS. MORSE:  Pardon?

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Can we get information down to the census track?  I see an overlay on television as ____ hot.

MS. MORSE:  Yeah, from a forecast standpoint we can certainly do that because we do forecasts that go down to two and a half kilometers.  So, it is available.  It’s just, I don’t think we’ve ever mapped it that way.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yeah, I'm just wondering if Mr. Renteria, you know, there might be some value in having a discussion just as a, on our next mini case to see if you did map it based on a two kilometer track map, you know, it might give us a running start on the more vulnerable places.  We tend to, you know, somehow talk about counties, you know.  And you heard me ask Mr. Renteria, what city was, you know, well, let’s we can get that.  We have to call the coroner, ___ deaths there were.  But, if we’re actually for forecasting purposes finding for whatever reason Arvin, California, looks five degrees hotter than Mendota, California, you know, giving OES a running start on some more census track or kilometer track basis, would that be of value or really wouldn’t—
MS. MORSE:  I think that would be helpful.  In fact, what we noticed in the calls this year is if we had a way and it’s one of the things we’re going to work on, of actually giving them graphics.  These are the areas that we think will be hit harder.  It would be much simpler for them rather than trying to describe on account of a county basis where we think it’s going to be in the west side in the foothills between 500 and 200 feet. If you can actually look at something, it just makes it much clearer.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yeah, it does.  I mean, even today’s Sacramento Bee , you know, when we talk about the growth aspects of California and one could just look at it and say, well, look these are the growth areas very quickly and you come up with your own thought processes.  But I think from an OES perspective, I guess our thought is ___ a plan that allows them a running start on a forecast.  It gives them the ability to make a more specific call, for example, just to say, for example, we don’t know what’s going on, but the forecast says Arvin, for whatever reason, looks like 113 and maybe we ought to start communicating through the plan with those folks.  Okay.

The accuracy of weather predictions?

MS. MORSE:  It is improving.  Let’s start with that.  It’s never quite as good as we would wish.  And last year in the Delta influenced areas, we did expect cooling to come sooner than it finally did.  So, it’s not a perfect science, but it is improving every year.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  And what are the back up systems in your particular field in terms of the weather service to ensure that your services are uninterrupted, if you will?

MS. MORSE:  Well, every office that we have does have an uninterruptible power source and generator supplies.  We do have redundant ways of accessing information and of sending out any warnings that we have.  And in extreme events, we do have the capability of physically moving one office to another location and forecast out of there.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Ms. Morse, thank you very much.  Appreciate your testimony.  Okay.  We can have Mr. Mark Woo-Sam, deputy director, legislation, and the Department of Industrial Relations.  And Rick Martinez.  Rick, I’m going to shoot over—sit down, please, thank you.  And, but I do want to move over to the heat regs for a moment, and then we’ll get back to ___ close. 
Obviously, the implementation of regulations dealing with heat illness preventions are important, and I think from our vantage point, two things are happening today.  We’re having a hearing here in Sacramento and we're talking about ways to better prevent heat illnesses given the regs.  And I do know the United Farm Workers are in a very hot place in the district saying more needs to be done.  So I think, you know, we're trying to match up what we’ve done in government to see if we can catch up with reality, if you could.  And in first and foremost, if you could first give us the requirements of the regulations, 3395, to the committee, and then we can kind of proceed from there.

MR. MARK WOO-SAM:  Okay.  Thank you, Senator.  And I want to thank you for the opportunity to come here and address DOSH’s implementation of its first ___ heat stress regulations, as you noted are found in Section 3395 of the California Code of Regulations Title 8.  
There’s four essential pillars of those regulations.  The first is in our obligation to develop and implement written policies on heat illness prevention.  The second component of that is to provide heat illness training to the employees.  The fourth (third) is to make readily available and to encourage employees to drink approximately four eight ounce cups of water per hour.  And of course the hotter the weather, the greater the encouragement should be to the employees to drink that water that is available.  And the fourth pillar is to provide immediate access to shade to provide recovery periods for at least five minutes.  
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Great.  And given those requirements, you know, maybe just a big picture question, if I could.  Most of those were in the context of the agriculture industry and farm workers and we did, in essence, try to tailor it with that industry in mind, but have you, are there other, have we asked certain industries, for example, to complete the policies and training that you mentioned earlier?  I mean, has that been done or how do we measure?

MR. WOO-SAM:  Well, the regulations apply to all industries and employers, so they don’t specifically specify agriculture.  Of course, that’s one of the obvious targets and one of the important places to implement those regulations.  Other affected industries, of course, are the construction industry.  And during our rule-making process, we heard from such industries as the amusement ride industry. 

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Disneyland, right?  

MR. WOO-SAM:  (INAUDIBLE) 
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Right.  But, for those industries that don’t have water fountains within a walking distance, let’s use the farm industry, not Disneyland.  Have we set a standard where we’re actually reviewing those specific plans for the higher risk types of industries?

MR. WOO-SAM:  Well, our enforcement activities are important of course, 
And ensuring that employers comply with these regulations which we believe are appropriate to prevent heat illness.  And along with our outreach which I can talk about since our heat regulations took effect, DOSH has conducted 226 targeted investigations specific to heat compliance with the heat regulations.  In addition to those targeted investigations, in conjunction with the labor and work force development agencies employment enforcement, economic employment enforcement coalition, and compliance with the heat regulations is one of the items that the coalition looks for in those suites.  And in fiscal year 2005 and six, it conducted 267 agriculture investigations and 286 construction industry investigations.  In fiscal year 2006 and seven, it conducted 234 agricultural investigations, and 384 construction investigations, issuing a total of 136 citations in 2006 and 136 citations in 2007.  So, we’re actively enforcing and investigating ___.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, let’s go all the way back to my original question.  What is the distinction given your comments between prevention and in investigations?  Are investigations after the fact?

MR. WOO-SAM:   The investigations occur from two sources.  One would be the complaints that from employees, for instance, that an employer has not complied with the regulation obligations.  Or a report from an employer of a heat illness incident and those incidents, DOSH would investigate.  The second source is what I primarily talked about is these targeted investigations that DOSH has conducted.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, what is a targeted investigation mean?  To me a targeted investigation from a proactive perspective means you knock on an employer’s door and you say that we are asking for your procedures responding to health illness.  We’re looking for your procedures in terms of contacting emergency services and we’re looking for your procedures on the emergency services available to workers at the work site.  Do you do any of that and have you done any of that and when was the last time you did it?
MR. WOO-SAM:  The targeted investigations are based on the industries I mentioned.  And in those targeted investigations, the heat investigations were specific to inquiring whether or not ensuring each of the elements of the regulations were complied with including showing the written policy and the availability of water with the triple EC investigations.  That was also an element of one of the things they check for in compliance.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Can you get back to us on breaking down those investigations based on the plan review?  That would be important for us.  Meaning that you have reviewed the plan proactively before complaint, before an incident, and not after the fact.  I think that was the basis for the regs was to make sure that industries, particularly, had these types of written procedures, as you mentioned, as one of the four pillars.  And so the committee would be very interested in knowing, you know, how often that has occurred from your perspective.

MR. WOO-SAM:  I believe we can ____ data for you.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Because I think it’s the only way we can ensure whether or not these regs are effective is you’ve got to have a plan.  And Mr. Renteria came here this year with a plan.  Last year we didn’t have a plan and things always seem to go better when we have plans.  I don’t know, for whatever reason.  But, that would be important.
If you could, tell us in terms of employers that don’t have a written plan who are required to have a plan, what is the penalty for not having that?

MR. WOO-SAM:  Well, there’s the citation process, and I'm sorry, Senator, I don’t recall the schedule of those specific amount for each penalty.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, have we assessed a penalty?

MR. WOO-SAM:  The citation assesses a penalty.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, have we issued a penalty, yet?

MR. WOO-SAM:  Yes, to my knowledge, the citations, each of them contain a penalty.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, and the citations, again, you’re going to tell us whether they had plans or not?

MR. WOO-SAM:  Yes, sir.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, alright.  Then I won’t go into that too much.  In terms of the training, the other pillar you mentioned for employers and supervisors, how do we make sure the training is actually occurring from a public health perspective?  I mean, workers know.  I know the chamber had a book, I believe, for sale. But, I mean, if you didn’t, how do we get information out to workers?
MR. WOO-SAM:  There’s several facets of our means of getting the information on heat injury prevention to the employers and employees.  They’re media, so we have press releases, we have radio interviews in several languages.  We have public service announcements.  We have as recently as last week, a direct mailing to 150,000 employers based on data from the EDD and an additional 7,000 mailings to specific industries, car wash, agricultural, farm labor contractors, I think I mentioned garment manufacturers.  So we have that information that we mail out through the, direct mail to the employers, as well.  And on the ground and in the field we have the DOSH staff, personnel available for consultation, as well.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, and do you do the trainings or do the employers do the trainings?

MR. WOO-SAM:  The employers are required to conduct the trainings.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, and how do we know they’re doing that?

MR. WOO-SAM:  Well, there would be a number of sources.  One would be our investigations and one would be complaints that we hear about.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  But, if workers don’t know they’re supposed to have training, how do they—there probably wouldn’t be a complaint.

MR. WOO-SAM:  There probably wouldn’t be.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So then proactively, as a department, how do you make sure there is training?

MR. WOO-SAM:  Again, this would fall back on our targeted inspections of industries.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  How many inspectors do you have?

MR. WOO-SAM:  I don’t have that number handy, but I can get that to you.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Do you have more than 10?

MR. WOO-SAM:  I would have to return to you with that information.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  You got to know that much when you come to committee.  I mean, we're going to ask the question how many inspectors you have and enforcing regulations.  I mean, do we have enough?  Mike Genest isn’t listening, I promise.  He’s busy doing the budget.  So, I mean, how much—I mean, the question from another perspective on a press conference that’s probably occurring later this afternoon is that we don’t have enough inspectors, we don’t do enough proactive checks.  We don’t, in essence, take complaints seriously, and we tend to sweep things under the rug.  That will be a press call you’ll get later today.  Not from this hearing, but I guess from a policy perspective is what can we do from this perspective to enable your department to be more proactive in terms of these regulations which are extremely important to a lot of folks, obviously?

MR. WOO-SAM:  Are you asking me for specific steps that—

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I’m asking whether or not we have enough people.

MR. WOO-SAM:  I believe that DOSH is satisfied with the resources that it has to implement its protection of workers.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Let’s move onto the—I’m going through your pillars, so we’ll go through this sequentially.  That the issue of potable water, is that, how are we sure that there is a sufficient quantify for potable water for workers?

MR. WOO-SAM:  Again, through the investigations we would have to look at the availability of the water and look at the work force.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And the investigations are after the fact, though, correct?

MR. WOO-SAM:  The investigation’s based on complaints that DOSH has received that would be after the fact.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  How do we check on a proactive basis?  I mean, you get five complaints from a work site that says we had no water here in sufficient quantities for the last three days.  Then you investigate.  But, that doesn’t tell us that people still didn’t have water for the last three days.  So how do we know employers take this seriously?

MR. WOO-SAM:  Well, we believe that they take it seriously through our targeted investigations and the citation and penalty mechanisms available.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  How many citations thus far have been issued for the lack of potable water?

MR. WOO-SAM:  I would have to get that number to you, Senator.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  We’d like to know.  Let’s talk about shade.  You mentioned earlier, so far it’s effective?  Are we providing sufficient amount of shade to workers?  How are we to measure this from an oversight committee perspective?

MR. WOO-SAM:  Well, I think it depends on the numbers of the workforce and the structures of the industries and the environment that we’re concerned about.  So it has to be sufficient to provide that availability for workers affected.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, sufficient also in the regulations talks about you as a department providing best practices.  So you’re guiding that, so how do we make sure best practices are actually being pushed by you, the state, the department?  What’s the best practice for shade in a vineyard or grape field or an orange grove?  You have those?  I mean—
MR. WOO-SAM:  I don’t know whether or not we’ve developed specific industry best practices dividing it up between different crops or types of agriculture on ___.  I think what we’ve looked at is the industry as a whole, and then in the inspection process, look at particular work environment without regard to whether it’s one crop or another and try to determine whether or not there’s the sufficient availability for shade for the affected workers.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Is there any thought with working somehow within the cabinet to ask our CDFA director to come up with best practices since that’s what the regulation calls for and various types of hot areas that particularly in agriculture that allows for better shading practices?  Could you request that?

MR. WOO-SAM:  I can certainly talk with the DOSH chief about entering into communication with _____.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yeah, I mean it just seems to, you know, there’s going to be different types of shade provided.  The regulation is very specific in terms of how it didn’t, you know, fall back to some sort of best practice guidance from the state.  We just want to make sure that is followed up on.

Just generally, on the agriculture industry, I think I mentioned, we know the percentage of farms operating in the hottest areas that are actually inspected?

MR. WOO-SAM:  I don’t have that information.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Could you get us that?

MR. WOO-SAM:  Yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  I’ve got a series of questions and I think the answer is going to be pretty similar to the last three answers you gave me.  So I’m trying not to waste a lot of time.  Let’s talk about the human factor if we could we had Dr. Horton here and we talked about hospitalizations.  Do we have any idea given the regulations where the highest risk factors are given a heat wave?  Just kind of tie it back to a heat wave type of environment.  Do you, the department, know that there ought, or there should be or are hot spots and do you put your investigations on full investigation mode at that time, or is there some sort of trigger?

MR. WOO-SAM:  Do you mean geographically speaking or time of year?

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yeah.  I mean, are your inspectors of Disneyland making sure the construction workers are getting potable water or are they in the Central Valley making sure that contractors have water that is sufficient to enable workers who are working in the fields for five straight days in triple digit heat.  Not Disneyland heat.  I mean, how do we, how are you targeting your proactive, I’ll use your term, investigations?  I mean, how are we doing that?

MR. WOO-SAM:  I can’t speak to the mechanism for determining which targets in our triple ___ sweeps or in our heat illness prevention sweeps.  But, I can speak with our directors of our employment economic enforcement coalition and try to provide you that information.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Okay, and it’s not, I’m not going to badger you, but let me say I think the answers so far have been absolutely inadequate for me to have any confidence that we really are proactively enforcing heat regs.  I mean, it sounds as though we’re crossing our fingers and hoping the industry does the right thing.  Or we’ll find them and we’ll fine them.  I think what we are trying to do from this committee’s perspective is always in a proactive way ask the question, what can we do now in a proactive way to, in essence, deal with these types of heat related illnesses or in this case, this hearing today, heat wave.  And I’d like to know if you can go back and we can redo this at some point in time.  And I’d like you to work with all of the affected agencies.  I’d like to know how you tie in with OES, for example in targeted areas where we have five days of excessive heat where workers are at the highest risk, and yet crops have to be completed.  This isn’t a factory where you shut it down and you say, you know, we’ll do the harvest ten days from now.  I mean, this is the work, the bell peppers keep churning.  And the bell pepper truck keeps moving.  And in many cases if there’s not adequate shade or water, then it’s going to be very difficult to coordinate some sort of response that ultimately, that OES could have a huge factor.  
I mean, OES, obviously, to me has some pretty adequate answers or will look into it.  I’m asking you to go back and see if we can revisit this again from a committee perspective just on the heat reg incident perspective.  Can we do that?
MR. WOO-SAM:  Yes, I’m happy to work with you. 

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Great.  Appreciate that.  Okay, let’s go on.  And Rick, thanks for sticking with us on that.  If we could, back to the emergency operations coordinator, obviously here we’ve seen you many times.  Appreciate your participation.  Just overall your perspectives, where we’re at, how we did better.  Last year, the complaint was in Sacramento, at least locally that, you know, air conditioning units went out.  There needed to be, you know, more of a city and county, a better response, if you will, and so are we better this year or not?

MR. RICK MARTINEZ:  In a nutshell, yes, we are.  I’d like to briefly, because I don’t want to be redundant to your earlier testimony, but first of all, thank you very much for the opportunity to appear before you today and in particular for your interest in the subject.  It is important.  And I’m going to come from the perspective of the general public as opposed to work place issues, because in Sacramento County, it’s pretty urbanized for the most part, and our issues are in fact dealing with the general public.  

Last year, obviously, we had a unique event in Sacramento County with respect to it was the first time the National Weather Service, to the best of my knowledge, it issued a heat advisory.  That was new to us.  It was partially or primarily caused by the high low temperatures throughout the night.  It did impact our community both from a, from the people and the animal perspective.  So we tried to break it down from that perspective looking forward.  What we did determine last year is that we needed some triggering mechanisms that would, you know, make us acutely aware that we may be entering to a phase of which we needed to do something out of the norm.  That we needed to work with our care providers, in home health care providers to volunteer groups to advocacy groups to increase the level of awareness for those particular folks.  And probably the most, and I'm going to end on this note, but I’m going to start with it, but the most important thing, aspect of any planning and appropriate response is the general public.  In that when you deal with vulnerable populations that are throughout your community in homes and apartments and SROs and facilities, that it’s the general public that really knows where they’re at more than government does.  So we really wanted to engage the public in helping us find those people that may ___.
What did we do, the preventive measures and contingency plans?  Well, we started by reaching out to our in-home health care providers and meeting with those groups and individuals.  We have 18,000 people that are in some form of in-home health aged communities, those types of things within Sacramento County.  We started talking to their providers both directly and through every medium we could get our hands on to make them aware of the signs and symptoms of what a heat emergency looks like, feels like, and then what they can do about it.  

We developed some new public education material.  But, then the City of Sacramento, they legislated cooling rooms, an area, a cool center within each of our SROs within the city, because some of the SROs do not have room air conditioners and they’re not capable of putting them in, because in many cases they have one window and that’s where the window air conditioner would go.  So, they legislated SRO cooling rooms in each one of those facilities and then followed it up with spot checks to ensure those inspections in my estimation, are critically important.  No notice inspection are the only way you can ensure compliance in some cases.  
We increased the public’s information.  Now we have a plan to increase public information with the onset of increased temperatures.  And we’ve conducted in advance of this, we’ve conducted meetings with our partner recreation departments and districts which we see as really an important element.  I will probably be the only one today who talks about cooling centers in not being the most effective move that we can make.  I think there’s a lot of interesting cooling centers.  I think we found from our experience, we opened 15 centers last year and we had virtually no one go to them.  But, what, for a myriad of reasons, it was really baffling to us.  We spent this last year trying to understand why.  Well, it seems to be that a portion of our general public, particularly those that would be most vulnerable, aren’t interested in leaving their homes.  When we looked at the 13 deaths that occurred over that heat wave last year, we found that a number of them had people checking on them.  Some of them had operating air conditioning.  For whatever reason, they chose not to turn it on.  So we knew that really we had to get to individuals. 
So what we also determined as part of our plan is that we would use existing centers whether it be malls or theaters or libraries or community centers.  A lot of our park and recreation districts have activities during the day, during the summer.  Our park departments have those types of things.  Senior centers.  And we would start to engage them in the process.  Not only to be eyes and ears, but also that we felt since those were known quantities within the community that we could, you know, steer people in that direction.  Because of that during this little mini heat wave we had last week, we did not open a cooling center.  Instead we made use of those existing community centers and there are far more of those out there than I can name.  But, there are a number of them.
Obviously, it became problematic on the Fourth of July, because typically there were closed down.  So what we did in that particular vein, we established an operational heat advisory task force which met daily.  We started conference calling on the third of July.  It consisted of our public health office, our care and shelter people, our public information officers.  Our emergency medical services first responder community and our emergency management office.  And daily we were watching reported responses of heat illnesses in the community by our first responder community.  Heat emergencies, patients showed up at local hospitals.  And any other or community based organizations to see if we had a rise.  
The public health office reached out through a couple of mediums.  One direct contact through phone and the other one through our reverse 911 system which is a process which we’ll call phone lines and leave a message.  We did 600.  It was kind of a test case for us.  We really hadn’t used that system for that purpose.  We identified it last year as an option.  So this year we did 600 calls on the morning of the fifth thinking that after two days of pretty warm temperatures that might be, that would be Thursday.  No excuse me.  We did it on Friday.  We started on the Fourth and we did direct calls on the sixth.  We did the automated calls and gave a number of options available to the receiver as far as they could call the other number.  And then we conducted personal and sight visits to the vulnerable population in the community and worked with our care providers.  
So that’s what we did.  We think it’s a start.  It’s not the end.  We still recognize as a feature objective that we need to do some greater outreach to try to get to one on one.  Most of our 18,000 people that are in some form of client relationship with the county have a care provider, a direct care provider.  So we’re really trying to work through those individuals and groups that represent them to getting them more information.  Obviously, what we want to do is not something that makes us feel good, but something that has appreciable impact on the public that is vulnerable.  
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Great.  Let me ask a couple questions.  Is Sacramento the model for the rest of the state?  The best?

MR. MARTINEZ:  No, I don’t think we are.  I think we try hard.  I think there are a number of people, and I should have said that we have appreciated working with Dr. Horton’s staff, our public health officer works directly with your Department of Public Health.  And obviously, we have a very close working relationship with Office of Emergency Services.  And we’re pleased to have great support from National Weather Service.  Are we the model?  I think we’re one of many counties working with our cities and our local agencies at doing a better job.  And I think there are a number of counties that are doing the same.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And are you—what was your thoughts of the July 4th mini system that we went through?  How would you evaluate it?

MR. MARTINEZ:  Well, I said earlier that I separated the general population work force issues, the work place issues.  The other issue that I think we’re on the fence of when we start cooling centers is our homeless population.  And emergency management isn’t designed to do social response.  And in the case of cooling centers, and we found this with warming centers last winter, is sometimes we just shift the burden.  Or shift the response.  So in other words, go to this particular center, I’ll go to this center.  And so to answer your question directly, I think the response was I think we raise the public’s awareness, the media, we directed media interest into a positive response so that we had people thinking.  I think your comments were right on the mark.  In many cases many of us think that well, we’ve been through hot summers before.  We can weather this storm.  And we find ourselves particularly as we get a little older, our capacity to make those judgments starts to wane a little bit.  And so we might find ourselves in a situation that we’re in over our head.  So I think we use positively the media’s interest to get the work, the message out.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Let me, if I could, ask one more question in terms of the staff training.  How do you get everyone prepared for this?  From a local perspective?  I mean, we heard so much from OES today that, you know, we’re waiting for, in many cases, the locals to get more specific.  I mean, are you specific enough given what you’ve heard today?

MR. MARTINEZ:  We’re specific enough with respect to asking the State of California for assistance.  Where our difficulties, and I don’t know if the state can really help us, I mean, I think on the work place issues, legislative employer activities is very important.  And then inspecting those.  And on the individual aspects it’s really difficult to reach down into the homes.  I mean, to be really candid with you, at some point when an individual chooses not to turn on their air conditioner, I don’t know that government in general can tell them to do that or reach in and push the on button.  With that, I think there is support that we get out of the State of California is very good and we are stymied in trying to reach down to the provider level and educate them.  As I said, we had 18,000 clients in our in-home support network.  And there’s no required training for a certain segment of those 17,000 care providers.  And so we really, we try to reach them, but it’s a difficult task.  And I don’t know how you can help or anybody can help.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And in terms of the identification, you mentioned the homeless of various vulnerable populations.  I mean, have you done that?  Your task forces?

MR. MARTINEZ:  We try.  We attempted to do that, obviously.  The medically fragile, aged, those people have those recognizable—and then we have a recognizable linkage with.  But, there’s a large portion of the general public that’s not tied into any program.  I’ll use my parents as an example.  They live in Sacramento County.  They’re in their 80s and you know, if my brother and I don’t check on them, they could find themselves in a situation.  And that’s the way I think the majority of the population is.  I mean, they’re still able to take care of themselves, but I can see as time goes on, you know, reminding them to do certain things like hydrate is very important.  
SENATOR FLOREZ:  And in terms of the issue given to the apartments that were mentioned so often last year in the heat wave for Sacramento, what’s different this year than last year?

MR. MARTINEZ:  Well, on the SROs, single room occupancies of which are a known quantity, the legislation, I think, helps.  But, what, you know, what you can’t really legislate is there are a number of apartments which aren’t single room occupants.  These are just apartments.  And they may or may not have working air conditioners.  And so in those cases, until, and I don’t know that we can even legislate they have air conditioners.  I think we can only legislate they have heat.  And so it’s really challenging.  What we have turned to then is providing options for the people in those apartments who are finding themselves in those situations to call us and then we will make available whatever we have to.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Thank you very much.

MR. MARTINEZ:  Thank you for your time and the opportunity.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thanks, Rick, as usual.  Okay, let’s go ahead and I want to thank Senator Vincent, as usual, for sitting through another long or shorter hearing, version hearing than we did last year.  And I would like to thank the witnesses who came here today.  I think it’s pretty clear to us we’re in a much better situation than we were last year given the plan and sounds as though it’s a resilient plan which I like very much.  I will say that we are interested in coming back to the heat regs and listening to the administration give us further answers that may not have been as adequate as they could have been today.  And given that, I thank Senator Vincent, thank you so much again for sitting through and we’ll go ahead and adjourn the Senate Government Organization Committee.
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